
 

 

 

 
 

Meeting papers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
 

Friday 3 July 2015 at 2.00 pm 
 

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

Date Published:25 June 2015       

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

 

Friday 3 July 2015 at 2.00 pm 

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

AGENDA 

 

   

   

1 APOLOGIES  
 

To receive apologies for absence. 

Jane Cleaver 
 

2 ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON  
 

 
To elect a Chairperson for the civic year. 

Jane Cleaver 
 

3 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRPERSON  
 

 
To elect a Vice-Chairperson for the civic year. 
 

Jane Cleaver 
 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

To note any declarations of interest. 

Jane Cleaver 
 

5 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

To approve as a correct record the minutes from the Committee’s meeting 
on 21 April 2015. 

Jane Cleaver 
 

6 OPTIONS FOR DELIVERING THE HOUSEHOLD RE-CYCLING 
CENTRES SERVICE (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

 
To consider the options for delivering the Household Re-cycling Centre 
Service. 

Tony Childs 
 

7 FOOD WASTE INTERVENTION PROJECT - UPDATE REPORT  
 

 
To receive a verbal update on the Food Waste Intervention Project. 

Andy Pritchard 
 



 

 

     

 

   

8 TARGETED MARKETING INTERVENTIONS (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

 
To consider a report on Targeted Marketing Interventions. 

Steve Read 
 

9 MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS PROVISIONAL OUTTURN REPORT 
2014/15 (Pages 15 - 22) 
 

 
To consider the attached report which sets out the financial performance 
of the individual authorities within the Committee against their approved 
annual budget. It also shows the provisional outturn for the financial year 
2014/15, and the combined position across authorities. 

Rachel Capon 
 

10 MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS ORIGINAL BASE BUDGET REPORT 
2015/16 (Pages 23 - 30) 
 

 
To receive information on the budgets set by member authorities for the 
financial year 2015/16. 

Rachel Capon 
 

11 PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014/15 (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

 
To receive the Performance Report for 2014/15. 

Tony Childs 
 

12 PARTNER SERVICE UPDATES (Pages 35 - 36) 
 

 
To receive a report on current initiatives in each of the district areas. 

Scott Williams 
 

13 FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

To note the following agreed meetings for 2015: 
 
Tuesday 13 October  
Tuesday 15 December  
 
To approve the following dates for meetings in 2016: 
 
23 Feb 
19 April 
21 June 
4 October 
6 December 
 
All meetings to start at 10am. 
 
 

Jane Cleaver 
 

Membership –  Cllr Chris Coleman (Cheltenham Borough Council), Cllr Ray Theodoulou (GCC), 
Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Stan Waddington (GCC) Cllr Sue Coakley (Cotswold District Council), 
Cllr Brian Robinson (Forest of Dean), Cllr Steve Jordan (Cheltenham Borough Council), 
Cllr Simon Pickering (Stroud District Council), Cllr Jim Porter (Gloucester City) and 
Cllr Marrilyn Smart OBE (Forest of Dean District Council) 
 

 (a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 



 

 

     

 

   

whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting. 

 (b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Jane Cleaver, Senior Democratic Services Adviser  
�:01452 324220/fax: 425850/e-mail: jane.cleaver@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

 (c) Co-opted Members 
Gloucester City and Stroud District Councils may each nominate up to two Co-opted 
Members to attend and participate in the Committee’s meetings. Co-opted Members may 
take a full part in public debate where they are present, but may not vote.  In the event of 
the Committee discussing confidential “exempt” non–public items the general presumption 
is that co-opted members shall leave the meeting, although should a co-opted member 
make a case to stay, this may be waived at the Chairman’s discretion provided no voting 
member raises an objection. Co-opted Members may, in such circumstances, be asked to 
leave the meeting while the Chairman seeks views from Voting Members. 
 

 (d) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS 
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list. 
 

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee held on 
Tuesday 21 April 2015 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

Cllr Sue Coakley  Cllr Jim Mason (chairman) 
Cllr Chris Coleman  Cllr Marrilyn Smart OBE 
Cllr David Fowles  Cllr Ray Theodoulou 
Cllr Terry Hale 
 

Apologies: Cllr Steve Jordan  Cllr Robert Vines 

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
 

52. MINUTES  
 
 
Resolved 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2015 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
 

53. FOOD WASTE INTERVENTION PROPOSAL  
 
 
Consideration was given to a report which proposed the development of a specific 
project aimed at increasing the amount of food waste collected, and thus reducing 
the total tonnage of residual waste. 
 
Members expressed their support for the principles outlined for this project, 
although some notes of caution were highlighted regarding the aim of achieving 
and maintaining an increase of 30% in the collection rate for food waste. 
 
Bearing these points in mind, the Committee 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That approval be given to the next steps in the project, as outlined in 

paragraph 4.7 of the report and 

2. That the County Council be requested to fund the project, subject to detailed 
costings being prepared. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

54. REVIEW OF CURRENT WASTE SERVICES - GLOUCESTER CITY  
 
 
The Committee was pleased to be informed that negotiations had been successful 
and had allowed support to be provided to Gloucester City Council’s Waste and 
Recycling Review, therefore 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the Joint Waste Team’s (JWT) contribution to the review so far be noted. 

 
2. That agreement be given to support continuing on the basis that the time given 

by JWT officers should be reimbursed ahead of any decision made by 
Gloucester City Council to join the Committee.  

 

3. That the level of reimbursement for support given should be taken into 
consideration at the time that a joining fee is negotiated. 

 
 

55. MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS MONITORING  - BUDGET 2015/16  
 
 
This report was introduced by Rachel Capon, Joint Waste Team. 
 
Concerns were expressed by members over the reduction in the income received 
from the sale of recyclates, and that the projection was for prices to continue to fall 
and may even reach the stage where payments had to be made for materials to be 
collected.  The consequential impact on budgets would need to be carefully 
monitored as adjustments may be required within the current financial year. 
 
The Committee emphasised the need for strong publicity on the importance of good 
quality recylates as these achieved the best market prices.  It was also agreed that 
every opportunity should be taken to lobby DEFRA after the General Election for 
assistance in this area. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the summary financial performance to date as contained in the report together 
with the potential impact on next year’s budgets if the income for recycling materials 
continues to fall is noted. 
 

56. RECYCLING RATE CALCULATION  
 
 
Following a short discussion on the pros and cons of using a recycling rate 
calculation which included the contributions of Household Recycling Centres 
(HRCs), it was agreed that whilst both the required statistics and this local 
calculation would be prepared, it would be a decision for each authority as to which 
to use.  If the local calculation was used, it was suggested that it was described as 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

‘total household recycling effort’ and that an explanation of its calculation be 
provided in any press releases. 
 
On that basis, the Committee 
 
Resolved 
 
That approval be given for the production of the district residents’ recycling 
contribution rate in addition to the official DEFRA statistics, to reflect the 
contributions made by the HRCs. 
 

57. SERVICE UPDATES  
 
 
The following service updates were noted: 
 
All partner districts: - Garden waste renewals had been sent out in February and 
March and take-up had been slightly up across the board compared with the 
previous year’s figures.   
 
Cheltenham Borough Council - The recycling materials bulking and marketing 
project was on schedule and a presentation was due to be made to the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 27 April.  The black bag splitting trial had 
been extended at Swindon Road HRC to establish if the performance achieved in 
February on diverting recyclables could be maintained during busier times.  . Work 
was also underway reviewing the bring site coverage and consideration was being 
given to increasing the numbers of carton and textile banks available in the 
borough. 
  
Cotswold District Council - Work had been completed on reviewing carton banks, 
and a number of other improvements, such as increasing the number of textile 
banks, were nearly finalised. A Cotswold-wide campaign targeting litter, supported 
by additional contractor activities, had started. 
  
Forest of Dean - The JWT had launched a litter prevention campaign in the Forest. 
The first phase would be a poster competition with schools to design artwork for the 
street cleaning vehicles and raise awareness with young people about the 
environmental problems and costs of littering.  A project to tackle fly-tipping in the 
Forest was continuing with a step up in the number of enforcement actions.  There 
had been 2 successful prosecutions for fly-tipping during this period. These had 
resulted in fines plus costs totalling approximately £1500 and had been publicised 
to act as a deterrent.  The council’s street wardens would continue to inspect fly 
tipping and have now issued 3 warning letters and 15 fixed penalty notices. 
  
Tewkesbury Borough Council – The DSO staff had moved to Ubico as of 1st April 
via the TUPE regulations.  The changeover has gone smoothly from a customer 
perspective with the customer service team not having received a dramatic 
increase in calls/complaints . 
  

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

JWT officers had been monitoring the MRF contract with Grundons at Bishop’s 
Cleave. The opportunity to send plastic and cardboard from FoD banks to the 
facility is being explored with a view to boosting income.  
 
Gloucester - Cartons and aerosols were now being collected but the tonnage 
available was small.  The main issue for the city was the high residual tonnage – 
current activities were therefore focused on reducing these through the no food 
waste “ stickers” – so far just rolled out in one area – participation in food waste 
collection was up 39% with tonnage up by 10%.  The amount of input required for 
this project was high so it would be rolled out in 7 phases across the City.  
 
Gloucestershire County Council - The JWT continues to review the scope to recycle 
extra materials through the HRCs.  Unfortunately carpet recycling remains 
uneconomic at this time.  Black bag opening was now done at all sites. 
 
Various publicity campaigns/opportunities were being prepared such as ‘Recycle 
Week’ (22-28 June) focusing this year on textile reuse and recycling and, with 
Gloucester City, for a recycling campaign to take place during the Rugby World Cup 
in September. 
 
 

58. FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
 
The dates of meetings for the remainder of 2015 were noted. 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
Meeting concluded at Time Not Specified 

 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 
 

Options for the Delivery of the Household Recycling Centre 

Service 

 

Committee  Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

Committee Date  3 July 2015 

Significant 

Decision 
Yes 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste 

Team (01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

Main Consultees None 

Purpose of Report 
To consult on the option to extend the current contract for the 
delivery of the HRC service for a further term of two years and 
eight months with an estimated value of £12m over the period. 

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Committee: 

a. Endorses the approach of negotiating an extension to the 
contract and 

b. Provides feedback to the County Council on the exercising of 
the option to extend the contract. 

 

Resource 

Implications 

 
Initial dialogue with Kier has clarified that an extension would 
result in savings; these will be firmed up prior to making a final 
recommendation to GCC.  The cost of the service will remain 
within the existing County Council budget.  
 

 
1. Background  

 
1.1 The Waste Management Services Contract, the contract for managing the Household 

Recycling Centres (HRC) commenced operation on 7th August 2006.  The contract was for 
an initial term of ten years until 6th August 2016, with the option to extend for up to a further 5 
years. The extension option is written in such a way that it can be exercised either be a 
single extension or a series of extensions which in either event cannot exceed a total 
maximum duration of 5 years.  
 

1.1. There are five household recycling centres provided by Gloucestershire County Council for 
the public to use, these are managed and operated by Kier MG Ltd and are shown on the 
map below (white lettering). The Swindon Rd site is owned by Cheltenham Borough Council 
and is operated by Ubico.  The five sites are open every day from 9am until 6:15pm except 
for Christmas Day and New Years Day.  

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 

 

Figure 1: The location of Household Recycling Centres across Gloucestershire 

 
1.2. The five sites handle various quantities of waste and the table below shows the tonnage 

handled during 2014/15 and an estimate of the number of customers using each site. 
 

Table 1: Tonnage of waste accepted at household recycling centres 
 

Site 
Reuse, 

Recycling & 
Recovery 

Garden 
Waste 

Residual 
Waste 

Total 
Waste 

Estimated 
number of 
customers 

pa 

Fosse Cross 2,829 725 1,189 4,743 148,219 

Hempsted 9,535 2,089 4,953 16,577 518,031 

Oak Quarry 4,976 1,379 2,731 9,086 283,938 

Pyke Quarry 7,666 4,438 3,897 16,001 500,031 

Wingmoor Farm 7,459 2,281 3,232 12,972 405,375 

 32,465 10,912 16,002 59,379 1,855,594 

 
1.3. The recycling and composting performance for 2014/15 is set out in the table below. 

 

Table 2: Recycling and composting rates at household recycling centres 
 
 

Site 
Reuse & 
Recycling 

Rate 

Composting 
Rate 

Combined 
Recycling & 
Composting 

Rate 

Fosse Cross 50.8% 18.5% 69.3% 

Hempsted 47.5% 15.5% 63.0% 

Oak Quarry 44.3% 18.6% 62.9% 

Pyke Quarry 36.8% 33.6% 70.4% 

Wingmoor Farm 43.9% 23.2% 67.1% 

Overall 43.6% 22.8% 66.4% 

 

 

1.4. In addition the recycling performance since 2008/09 is set out in the figure overleaf.  This 
chart shows that overall the recycling rate has been broadly stable since 2008/09.   
 

 

Page 6



 

 

Figure 2: The Recycling and Composting rates of the Household Recycling Centres  
 
 

 
 
 

1.5. The range of materials accepted at the sites for recycling is set out overleaf.  The range of 
recyclables has gradually increased over the years as more recycling outlets have been 
established however, some materials have been lost from the list e.g. UPVC doors and 
windows, due to contractors going out of business. 

Table 3: Materials accepted for recycling at household recycling centres 
 

Materials which can be recycled 

Batteries  Books  Cans  
Card & 
cardboard  

Catalogues & 
brochures  

CD & DVD 
discs  

DIY waste & 
rubble   

Electronic 
& electrical 
equipment  

Foil 
Garden 
cuttings 

Glass 
bottles & jars 

Ink 
cartridges 

Junk mail 
Light bulbs & 
Fluorescent 
tubes 

Newspapers 
& magazines 

Oil – 
cooking & 
waste 
engine oil 

Plastic bottles Scrap metal Shoes Spectacles 

Telephone 
directories & 
Yellow Pages 

Televisions & 
monitors 

Textiles & 
clothes 

Wood & 
timber 

 

1.6. The level of satisfaction with the service has been monitored for many years and was last 
surveyed in 2014.  At that time 96.5% customers said that they were satisfied or very 
satisfied with the service.  There was a small level of dissatisfaction with the service and this 
was mainly caused by queuing, which is a particular problem identified at the Hempsted site, 
and which is planned to be addressed with an upgrade to the site during 2015/16. 
 

  

Page 7



 

 

Table 4: Satisfaction rates at household recycling centres in 2014 
 

 

 

 
1.7. The budget for the HRC service is £4m per annum and this has risen steadily over the years 

due to increases in landfill tax and RPI.  Landfill tax has increased from £18/tonne in 2005/06 
to £80/t in 2014/15 an increase of 344% over the ten years.   
 

2. Options for Delivery 
 

2.1 There are a number of options to be considered for providing the HRC service when the fixed 
term period of the current contract expires in August 2016. These include:   
 

a. Stopping the service 

b. Deliver the service via an in-house workforce (create a Direct Services 
Organisation) 

c. Creating or joining a Teckal company (a company wholly owned by a local 
authority set up to deliver services) 

d. Exercising the option to extend the existing contract 

e. Re-procuring the service via an OJEU procurement 

 
2.2 Stopping The Service - The service is statutory function and is required under section 51 of 

the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (EPA 1990); 
 
51. Functions of waste disposal authorities. 
(1) It shall be the duty of each waste disposal authority to arrange – 
 
(b) for places to be provided at which persons resident in its area may deposit their 
household waste and for the disposal of waste so deposited;  
 
The legislation rules out an option to stop providing this service altogether.   
 

2.3 Delivering the service via an in-house workforce (create a DSO) - It is possible under the 
Local Government Act 1988 to create a direct services (or labour) organisation to deliver the 
service.  Under this arrangement the County Council would become the employer of the staff 
and take on the service delivery directly.   

Page 8



 

 

 
2.4 If the option of creating a DSO were to be followed there would be increased costs in 

delivering the service.  This is because TUPE is likely to apply to a significant number of the 
staff employed by the current contractor in providing the HRC service, bringing these staff 
into the Council as employees would entitle them to join the local Government pension 
scheme; in addition they would be entitled to different pay scales which would be an increase 
in cost to the Council. These additional costs are estimated to be £120k pa and this is likely 
to outweigh the benefit of bringing the contract “in house”.   This option would also go against 
the strategic direction the authority is taking in becoming a commissioning council. 
 

2.5 Creating or joining an existing Teckal company - Under the Companies Act 2006 the 
County Council could establish its own private company, a Teckal company, in which it is the 
shareholder or it could join an existing Teckal company.  Creating or joining a Teckal 
company would mean the County Council would not have to tender the HRC service on the 
open market it could directly award the contract to the Teckal company and the current 
provider staff would TUPE transfer to the company.  This option is potentially attractive as it 
would give the County Council the opportunity to deliver the service without having to pay a 
profit on the contract. The Council would also exercise complete control over service delivery 
and enable them to explore options for maximising income from the sale of recyclable 
materials.  However, the County Council would also bear all the risk of any service 
overspend or downturn in recyclable markets. If it took the option to create its own Teckal 
company it would also bear all the costs of establishing the company, estimated at £250k, 
based on the set up costs from Ubico, the Teckal company formed by Cheltenham Borough 
Council and Cotswold District Council in 2012. 
 

2.6 The option of joining Ubico has been explored informally.  Whilst within Ubico there is some 
interest  in exploring this opportunity further, the timing is not right at present due to capacity 
challenges.  Ubico have just taken on the collection service for Tewkesbury Borough Council 
and are currently in the process of transferring other Council services into the company and 
preparing to mobilise to deliver collection services for Stroud DC from April 2016. 
Consequently they are operating at full capacity so this is not an option which can be 
followed at this time. 
 

2.7 Exercising the option to extend the current contract - Under the current Waste 
Management contract there is the option to extend for up to a maximum of five further years 
whether by way of one single extension or a series of extensions.  At the time the contract 
was let in 2006, it delivered a significant saving compared to the previous contract. The 
option to extend can only be exercised by giving at least 12 months written notice to the 
current provider; hence notice must be given on or before the 6th August 2015.   It is 
important to note that under the terms of the option the contract terms and conditions must 
remain in full force and effect though there is an ability to vary (by agreement) both the 
services and the payments. However, any such changes need to be substantially the same 
as the existing terms otherwise the Council would be acting unlawfully and in breach of the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015. An extension does provide an opportunity to deliver a 
continued service possibly at a reduced price.  
 

2.8 Discussions with Kier Environmental Services the incumbent provider have demonstrated 
that they are interested in an extension to the contract and that this would result in modest 
savings. These will be firmed up before making a final recommendation to GCC  
 

2.9 Re-procuring the service - There is the option to go to the market to re-procure the service.  
This option would involve the setting up of a project team to deliver a procurement which 
would involve legal, technical and financial advice.  Any procurement would need to be via 

Page 9



 

 

an OJEU route and would take at least 6 months to deliver.  In 2006 the procurement 
attracted just four companies and only three eventually bid.  Re-procurement on the open 
market may deliver better value than negotiating an extension to our existing contract but 
there is also a risk that it would increase costs.   
 

2.10 There are two viable options to consider in delivering the contract for the future; an extension 
or procurement.  
 

3. Risk Assessment   
 

Risks Impact Likelihood Score Mitigation 

Option 2.10) A change in 
service provider may reduce 
customer service 

5 2 10 

Ensure any change in 
provider is managed 
using a robust 
performance 
management system. 

Options 2.9) and 2.10) 
Capacity – internal resources 
need to be made available 
for a negotiation or re-
procurement. 

3 4 12 

Ensure sufficient 
resource is made 
available by following 
project management 
procedures. 

 
4. Officer Advice 

 
4.1.  It is recommended that the Committee: 

 
4.1.1. Endorses the approach of negotiating an extension to the contract and 
4.1.2. Provides feedback to the County Council on the exercising of the option to extend 

the contract. 
 

 

Page 10



 

 

 

 
 

Encouraging participation by “no and low” recyclers – 

Proposal for targeted interventions  

Committee  Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

Committee Date  3 July 2015 

Significant 

Decision 
No 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste 

Team (01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

Main Consultees None 

Purpose of Report 
To outline a proposal for encouraging participation in kerbside 
recycling and food waste collection by “no and low” 
recyclers  

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Committee: 

a. Discusses the proposal and, subject to agreement: 

b. Directs officers to develop and implement the proposal 

 

Resource 

Implications 

 
The development of the project can be done within existing team 
resources. There is currently a vacant education officer post 
within the Joint Waste Team. The budget for this could be 
switched into this project initially while the project is instigated. 
 
Any further resource implications can be reported at the next 
meeting.  
  

 
1. Background  

 
1.1 Recycling performance in the county has generally flattened out in recent years, with boosts 

to performance in kerbside recycling only coming at the point of major service change. Waste 
analysis here and elsewhere confirms that there is still a very large proportion of recyclable 
material in the residual waste stream; potentially half by weight of what is thrown away could 
either be recycled or composted through existing services.    
 

1.2 This is a significant drag on costs and reducing this wastage will have cashable financial 
benefits to all partners.  
 

1.3 It is well understood that here and elsewhere in the UK there is a wide range of attitudes to 
recycling. A proportion of the population are very high recyclers and need no particular 
prompting. These people are often the ones asking for more materials to be picked up via 
kerbside.  At the other end of the spectrum there are some who, either through lack of 
access to services or attitude, participate at a very low level or not at all. Between the 
extremes are the largest group who will recycle provided access is easy and they are 

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



 

 

frequently prompted to do so. The work on Food Waste outlined in another report on this 
agenda describes a “prompting”  intervention of this nature   
 

1.4 One other means to reinforce the message has been the education of children via schools on 
the assumption that their enthusiasm will act as prompt. This was especially valuable during 
the period that local authority recycling grew in scope 10-15 years ago. It undoubtedly has 
continuing value but this is hard to quantify. With competing demands on the curriculum it 
has been harder in recent years to secure engagement with children through schools.      
 

2. Options for Engaging with “low and no” recyclers.  
 

2.1 The JWT’s education officer post has recently been vacated and this presents a clear 
opportunity to review whether to stay with or change the focus of engagement away from the 
predominantly schools and community groups approach. 
 

2.2 An alternative (or resources permitting) complementary - approach to improving performance 
and reducing costs would be to engage with low and no recyclers particularly, but not 
exclusively, in areas where they constitute a large percentage of households.  
 

2.3 This approach would be largely educational and supportive but based on a more assertive 
approach with officers being authorised and prepared to use enforcement as a sanction fairly 
early on in the process rather than as, at best, an absolutely last resort or hollow threat. The 
key direct message to residents would be that rubbish costs and recycling matters. We 
provide the opportunity for you to recycle 70% of your waste. Most people recycle and we are 
prepared to visibly and persistently tackle this issue with those who are not.  

 
2.4 Some aspects of this work is already taking place but this proposal would be to make it more 

intensive and sustained  
 

3.    Proposed Methodology.  
 
3.1 Direct engagement with residents who don’t recycle meeting face to face at a household and 

street level. 

• Use a team of people who work together to concentrate on particular low performing 
areas for a while 

• Team deployed county-wide on a priority, rotational basis  

• Team can involve full time and temporary members (contractor staff, call centre staff, 
others seeking experience) 

• Sustained / Persistent over a period; not one-off contacts.    

• Prior Identification of issues by crews and team 

• Removal of unauthorised additional bins (there is also experience of this in FoDDC 
which can be drawn from)  

• Tackling side waste and open lids  

• Non presentation of recycling / food waste  

• Household waste audits   
 

3.2  Remove basic barriers  
  

• Lack of information or understanding of the system 

• Lack of containers   

• Add prompts such as stickers on bins and recruiting (in an informal way) “champions” 
within the community to reinforce the message locally.  

Page 12



 

 

 
3.3    Sanctions include  
  

• Remove extra unauthorised bins 

• Don’t automatically clear side waste  

• Enforce existing rules  

• Fixed penalty notices for flytipping   
 
4. Evidence of effectiveness 

 
4.1. This approach has been adopted in Gloucester City over around 3,500 households in two 

phases and has measurably improved participation. Gloucester City have now commenced 
phase 3.  

 
4.2. City measured residual tonnage before and after (several times and averages taken) to 

measure if there was a percentage reduction in a particular area. In Coney Hill the residual 
tonnage dropped by 10% and in Robinswood by 16%.  The impact of intervention at this level 
on the amount diverted from disposal is often hard to quantify amid the background noise of 
monthly variations and longer term trends in tonnages but increases in participation and 
reductions of this magnitude is an indicator of changed behaviour and the potential to expand 
this approach.   

 
4.3. The approach could be introduced for a year over a wider area and tonnages monitored on a 

round by round basis to obtain a fuller picture.  As we do not know what scale of exercise is 
required in order to gain  a significant return, running this initiative for a year would enable us 
to find out; 

• What size pool of existing resources is readily available to us at any point in time and what 
else we need to add to this. 

• Which types of property / demographics give us what level of return over what timescale 
(Gloucester City have found that social housing with stable tenancies are a particularly 
fruitful sector to work with and this provides the added dimension of working with social 
housing providers). 

• The level of knock-on effect from local word of mouth and the benefits of doing additional 
promotion and publicity in support of this approach. It is probable that once the community 
becomes aware of how seriously we are taking this; that would multiply the benefits for the 
same level of investment. 

• How often we need to return to the same areas and how repeat visits impact upon 
resources. 

 
4.4. The current stickering exercise is a useful precursor to this more intensively targeted 

approach and we can build on this.  
 
 

5. Issues and Risks  
 
5.1  The approach doesn’t match the current skills set of the Joint Waste Team. However 

Gloucester City have an experienced officer who could, subject to agreement of Gloucester 
City, act as project lead and trainer. The JWC could negotiate with Gloucester City to help 
manage the project. City would then potentially benefit from access to a larger team in 
rotation.  

 

Page 13



 

 

5.2 This approach will, as a consequence of the directness of the approach, require corporate 
level buy in to succeed both in terms of dealing with any negative feedback and encouraging 
the involvement of staff from outside the JWT. 

 
5.2  It is not certain that the approach will measurably increase performance at a county-wide 

scale. However it is not proposed that this would be the sole focus of education and 
engagement. WRAP have recently concluded that the best scope for improvement still 
comes from engagement with existing recyclers. It is not proposed that this approach will 
reduce or replace other more general initiatives.   

 
6. Next Steps 
 
6.1  Members are asked to discuss this approach and if there is interest in pursuing this further, to 

direct the Head of Service to work up this project for implementation and receive an update 
at the next meeting of the Committee in October.  Some parts of the initiative would 
supersede existing projects such as the removal of unauthorised additional bins.  

 
6.2 This work would include evaluation of the possibility of external funding.  WRAP are expected 

to launch Round 3 of the Innovation in Waste Prevention Fund shortly and we will explore 
criteria to make a case to bid for this project. 

 
 
 

 

  

 

Page 14



 

 
 

Management Accounts Provisional Outturn Report 2014/15 

 

Committee  

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

 

Committee Date  3 July 2015 

Significant 

Decision 

No 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team 

(01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

Main Consultees 

 

None 

 

Purpose of Report The purpose of this report is to set out the financial performance of the 

individual authorities within the JWC against their approved annual 

budget. It shows the provisional outturn for the financial year 2014/15 

It also shows the combined position across authorities.  

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Committee: 

a) Notes the summary financial performance as contained in this 

report and the potential impact on next year’s budgets if the 

income for recycling materials continues to fall and residual 

waste continues to rise.  

Resource 

Implications 

None 

  

 
 
1) Background  

a) When the Joint Waste Committee was formed it was agreed that budget 
setting and service charges are retained decisions for the individual 
authorities within the partnership.   

b) As such the operational budgets for waste disposal, waste collection and 
street cleaning have remained with their respective authority but are managed 
by officers within the Joint Waste Team.   

c) The majority of the operational budget is payment to contractors: 
Gloucestershire County Council contracts include Cory for waste disposal and 
Kier for Household Recycling Centres; Forest of Dean District Council 
contracts include Biffa for waste collection and street cleaning; and 
Cheltenham and Cotswold delivery provider for waste collection and street 
cleaning is the local authority company Ubico. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 15



d) As Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) is the Administering Authority for 
the Joint Waste Committee, budgets associated with running the Joint Waste 
Committee are reported within their figures.   Staffing costs for the Joint 
Waste Team form the most of this budget and these remain with the original 
partner organisation’s budget but will be paid to the Administering Authority on 
a quarterly basis.  
 

2) Current Financial Position 
a) Appendix 1 is the combined revenue budgets for GCC, CBC, CDC and 

FODDC and shows the current provisional outturn position for 2014/15.  
b) There is an overspend of £405,000 (1.2% of the net budget) the majority of 

which relates to waste disposal costs.  
 

3) Waste Disposal Costs  
 

a) Appendix 2 shows the Gloucestershire County Council revenue budget.   
b) The provisional outturn for waste disposal is an overspend of £840,000.  This 

is mainly due to additional tonnage being received above the base budget, 
particularly residual, garden and wood waste.  This overspend is partially 
offset by an underspend on waste projects and communications due to delays 
in projects outside control of the Joint Waste Team. 
 

4) Waste Collection Costs 
 
a) Appendix 3 shows Cheltenham Borough Council revenue budget and the 

provisional outturn for the year is an underspend of £86,000. During the year 
there has been reduced income from recycling, due to income for recyclables 
falling in recent months, however this has been offset by the impact of the 
year end Ubico underspend being redistributed to the authority.  

b) Appendix 4 shows Cotswold District Council revenue budget and the 
provisional outturn for the year is an underspend of £317,000.  The reduced 
income from recycling due to falling rates from recyclables experienced during 
the year has been offset by the impact of the year end Ubico underspend 
being redistributed to the authority.  

c) Appendix 5 shows Forest of Dean District Council revenue budget and the 
provisional outturn is an underspend of £32,000.  This is mainly attributed to 
the annual indexation applied to the contractor costs for the collection of 
waste and recycling and street cleaning being less than expected due to low 
fuel prices.  There was an overspend on recycling collection schemes due to 
the decrease in income from materials and the contribution from GCC for the 
food waste supply agreement not reaching the £100k target due to the 
increase in residual waste sent to landfill, however this was offset by the 
reduction in contractor costs.  

 
 
  

Page 16



Appendix 1 – Total Revenue Budget Summary across all JWC partners 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 
2014/15 Provisional Outturn 
Head of Service – Steve Read 

 
Total Provisional Provisional Year 

Budget Area  Budget Outturn End Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Joint Waste Management Unit 0 -52 -52 

Joint Improvement Board 0 52 52 

TOTAL - GJWP 0 0 0 

        

Waste Disposal:       

Royalty Payments -608 -632 -24 

WCA Landfill and Composting 16,284 17,036 752 

Household Recycling Centres 4,065 4,569 504 

Trade Waste -17 -38 -21 

Recycling Credits 3,374 3,299 -75 

Tipping Away 54 55 1 

Closed Landfill Sites 47 20 -27 

WCA Fridges and TVs 64 83 19 

Management Costs 64 11 -53 

Waste Projects 196 53 -143 

Waste Education 20 16 -4 

OHIO 4 1 -3 

Marketing Promotions - Waste 150 64 -86 

TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL 23,697 24,537 840 

        

Waste Collection:       

Household Waste 3,578 3,338 -240 

Bulky Household Waste -4 1 5 

Food/Organic Waste 307 301 -6 

Green Waste 578 357 -221 

Recycling Centres 193 263 70 

Bring Sites 90 105 15 

Recycling Collection Schemes 1,790 1,796 6 

Trade Waste -99 -72 27 

Recycling Schemes Marketing 52 35 -17 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 6,485 6,124 -361 

        

Street Cleaning 2,108 1,978 -130 

 
      

Central Costs:       

Central Support Costs 1,463 1,451 -12 

JWT Staffing Costs 434 439 5 

Depreciation 538 609 71 

Finance Leases 292 284 -8 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 2,727 2,783 56 

        

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 35,017 35,422 405 
Note: Negative figures show potential underspend and positive figures show potential overspend

Page 17



Appendix 2 – Gloucestershire County Council Revenue Budget Summary 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 
2014/15 Provisional Outturn 

Head of Service: Steve Read 

 
Partner: Gloucestershire County Council 

        

Budget Area Total Provisional 
Provisional 

Year 

  Budget Outturn End Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

        

Joint Waste Management Unit 0 -52 -52 

Joint Improvement Board 0 52 52 

TOTAL - GJWP 0 0 0 

        

Waste Disposal:       

Royalty Payments -608 -632 -24 

WCA Landfill and Composting 16,284 17,036 752 

Household Recycling Centres 4,065 4,569 504 

Trade Waste -17 -38 -21 

Recycling Credits 3,374 3,299 -75 

Tipping Away 54 55 1 

Closed Landfill Sites 47 20 -27 

WCA Fridges and TVs 64 83 19 

Management Costs 64 11 -53 

Waste Projects 196 53 -143 

Waste Education 20 16 -4 

OHIO 4 1 -3 

Marketing Promotions - Waste 150 64 -86 

TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL 23,697 24,537 840 

        

Central Costs:     

Central Support Costs 840 840 0 

JWT Staffing Costs 237 237 0 

Depreciation 5 5 0 

Finance Leases     0 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 1,082 1,082 0 

        

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 24,779 25,619 840 
 

 
Note: Negative figures show potential underspend and positive figures show potential overspend 

Page 18



 

Appendix 3 – Cheltenham Borough Council Revenue Budget Summary 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 
2014/15 Provisional Outturn 

Head of Service: Steve Read 

 
Partner: Cheltenham Borough Council 

        

Budget Area Total Provisional 
Provisional 

Year 

  Budget Outturn End Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

        

        

Waste Collection:       

Household Waste 1,185 1,015 -170 

Bulky Household Waste -10 1 11 

Food/Organic Waste     0 

Green Waste -119 -224 -105 

Recycling Centres 193 263 70 

Bring Sites 12 32 20 

Recycling Collection Schemes 684 735 51 

Trade Waste -99 -72 27 

Recycling Schemes Marketing 23 10 -13 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 1,869 1,760 -109 

        

Street Cleaning 835 784 -51 

        

Central Costs:       

Central Support Costs 268 268 0 

JWT Staffing Costs 30 34 4 

Depreciation 45 123 78 

Finance Leases 292 284 -8 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 635 709 74 

        

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 3,339 3,253 -86 
 
Note: Negative figures show potential underspend and positive figures show potential overspend 
 
  

Page 19



Appendix 4 – Cotswold District Council Revenue Budget Summary 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 
2014/15 Provisional Outturn 

Head of Service: Steve Read 

 
Partner: Cotswold District Council 

        

Budget Area Total Provisional Provisional Year 

  Budget Outturn End Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

        

        

Waste Collection:       

Household Waste 1,020 971 -49 

Bulky Household Waste     0 

Food/Organic Waste     0 

Green Waste 745 653 -92 

Recycling Centres     0 

Bring Sites     0 

Recycling Collection Schemes 809 718 -91 

Trade Waste     0 

Recycling Schemes Marketing     0 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 2,574 2,342 -232 

        

Street Cleaning 773 707 -66 

        

Central Costs:       

Central Support Costs 160 148 -12 

JWT Staffing Costs 38 38 0 

Depreciation 91 84 -7 

Finance Leases     0 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 289 270 -19 

        

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 3,636 3,319 -317 
 
Note: Negative figures show potential underspend and positive figures show potential overspend 

Page 20



Appendix 5 – Forest of Dean District Council Revenue Budget Summary 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 
2014/15 Provisional Outturn 

Head of Service: Steve Read 

 
Partner: Forest of Dean District Council 

        

Budget Area Total Provisional 
Provisional 

Year 

  Budget Outturn End Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

        

        

Waste Collection:       

Household Waste 1,373 1,352 -21 

Bulky Household Waste 6 0 -6 

Food/Organic Waste 307 301 -6 

Green Waste -48 -72 -24 

Recycling Centres     0 

Bring Sites 78 73 -5 

Recycling Collection Schemes 297 343 46 

Trade Waste     0 

Recycling Schemes Marketing 29 25 -4 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 2,042 2,022 -20 

        

Street Cleaning 500 487 -13 

        

Central Costs:       

Central Support Costs 195 195 0 

JWT Staffing Costs 129 130 1 

Depreciation 397 397 0 

Finance Leases     0 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 721 722 1 

        

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 3,263 3,231 -32 
 
 
Note: Negative figures show potential underspend and positive figures show potential overspend 
 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Management Accounts Original Base Budget Report 2015/16 

 

Committee  

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

 

Committee Date  3 July 2015 

Significant 

Decision 

No 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team 

(01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

Main Consultees 

 

 Responsible Finance (Section 151) Officers of each partner  

Purpose of Report To set out the 2015/16 Original Base Budget of the individual 

authorities within the JWC against the 2014/15 Revised Budgets.  It 

also shows the combined position across authorities.  

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Committee: 

a) Notes the 2015/16 Original Budget.   

Resource 

Implications 

None 

  

 
 
1) Background  

a) When the Joint Waste Committee was formed it was agreed that budget 
setting and service charges are retained decisions for the individual 
authorities within the partnership.   

b) As such the operational budgets for waste disposal, waste collection and 
street cleaning have remained with their respective authority but are managed 
by officers within the Joint Waste Team.   

c) The majority of the operational budget covers payment to contractors: 
Gloucestershire County Council contracts include Cory for waste disposal and 
Kier for Household Recycling Centres; Forest of Dean District Council 
contracts include Biffa for waste collection and street cleaning. The local 
authority company Ubico provides waste collection and street cleaning 
services to Cheltenham, Cotswold and Tewkesbury.  

d) As Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) is the Administering Authority for 
the Joint Waste Committee, budgets associated with running the Joint Waste 
Committee are reported within their figures.   Staffing costs for the Joint 
Waste Team form the most of this budget and each partner authority pays 
their agreed contribution to the Administering Authority on a quarterly basis.  

Agenda Item 10

Page 23



 
2) 2015/16 Original Base Budget 

a) Appendix 1 shows the combined 2015/16 (Original) Budget for the current five 
members of the partnership against the 2014/15 (Revised) Budget.   
Tewkesbury Borough Council joined the partnership on 15th December 2014 
and there was no comparative full year budget to include in the 2014/15 
figures.  This is the main reason for the apparent significant increase in the 
combined collection authority budget.  

b) Appendices 2 to 6 show the 2014/15 (Revised) Budgets and 2015/16 
(Original) Budgets for the individual authorities within the JWC. The 2015/16 
budgets for Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council and 
Tewkesbury Borough Council may be subject to change later in the year as 
these partners have a contract with Ubico and the budgets continue to be 
finalised, with the expectation that these will be confirmed during June. 

c) Residual waste continues to rise and the Waste Disposal budget has been 
increased accordingly. The Budget allocated to projects and communication 
by the Waste Disposal Authority has been reduced to help offset the increase 
in residual costs. It is anticipated that they will increase again in 2016/17 to 
support the expected service change at Stroud District Council. 

d) Income for recyclable materials is falling causing an additional pressure on 
Waste Collection Authority budgets.  

 
 

Page 24



Appendix 1 – Total Revenue Budget Summary across all JWC partners 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership - 2015/16 Base Budget 

Head of Service:   Steve Read 

  2014/15 2015/16 

Budget Area Revised Budget Original Budget 

  £'000 £'000 

Joint Waste Management Unit 0 0 

Joint Improvement Board 0 0 

TOTAL - GJWP 0 0 

      

Waste Disposal: 
 

  

Royalty Payments -608 -677 

WCA Landfill and Composting 16,284 17,196 

Household Recycling Centres 4,065 4,167 

Trade Waste -17 -5 

Recycling Credits 3,374 3,316 

Tipping Away 54 56 

Closed Landfill Sites 47 22 

WCA Fridges and TVs 64 65 

Management Costs 64 -2 

Waste Projects 196 100 

Waste Education 20 20 

OHIO 4 0 

Marketing Promotions - Waste 150 70 

TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL 23,697 24,328 

Waste Collection: 
 Household Waste 3,578 4,760 

Bulky Household Waste -4 -5 

Food/Organic Waste 307 310 

Green Waste 578 428 

Recycling Centres 193 195 

Bring Sites 90 88 

Recycling Collection Schemes 1,790 2,035 

Trade Waste -99 -6 

Recycling Schemes Marketing 52 67 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 6,485 7,872 

      

Street Cleaning 2,108 2,754 

  
 

  

Central Costs: 
 

  

Central Support Costs 1,463 1,376 

JWT Staffing Costs 434 559 

Depreciation 538 596 

Finance Leases 292 284 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 2,727 2,815 

      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 35,017 37,769 

Page 25



 
Appendix 2 – Gloucestershire County Council Revenue Budget Summary 
 

 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership - 2015/16 
Base Budget 

 

Head of Service:   Steve Read 

Partner: Gloucestershire County Council 
 

  2014/15 2015/16 

Budget Area Revised Original 

  Budget Budget 

  £'000 £'000 

      

Joint Waste Management Unit 0 0 

Joint Improvement Board 0 0 

TOTAL - GJWP 0 0 

      

Waste Disposal:     

Royalty Payments -608 -677 

WCA Landfill and Composting 16,284 17,196 

Household Recycling Centres 4,065 4,167 

Trade Waste -17 -5 

Recycling Credits 3,374 3,316 

Tipping Away 54 56 

Closed Landfill Sites 47 22 

WCA Fridges and TVs 64 65 

Management Costs 64 -2 

Waste Projects 196 100 

Waste Education 20 20 

OHIO 4 0 

Marketing Promotions - Waste 150 70 

TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL 23,697 24,328 

      

Central Costs:     

Central Support Costs 840 498 

JWT Staffing Costs 237 316 

Depreciation 5 5 

Finance Leases     

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 1,082 819 

      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 24,779 25,147 
 

 

Page 26



Appendix 3 – Cheltenham Borough Council Revenue Budget Summary 
 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership - 
2015/16 Base Budget 

Head of Service:   Steve Read 

Partner: Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

  2014/15 2015/16 

Budget Area Revised Original 

  Budget Budget 

  £'000 £'000 

      

      

Waste Collection:     

Household Waste 1,185 1,207 

Bulky Household Waste -10 -11 

Food/Organic Waste     

Green Waste -119 -154 

Recycling Centres 193 195 

Bring Sites 12 11 

Recycling Collection Schemes 684 728 

Trade Waste -99 -38 

Recycling Schemes Marketing 23 23 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 1,869 1,961 

      

Street Cleaning 835 914 

      

Central Costs:     

Central Support Costs 268 268 

JWT Staffing Costs 30 28 

Depreciation 45 45 

Finance Leases 292 284 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 635 625 

      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 3,339 3,500 

 
  

Page 27



 

Appendix 4 – Cotswold District Council Revenue Budget Summary 
 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership - 
2015/16 Base Budget 

Head of Service:   Steve Read 

Partner: Cotswold District Council 
 

  2014/15 2015/16 

Budget Area Revised Original 

  Budget Budget 

  £'000 £'000 

      

      

Waste Collection:     

Household Waste 1,020 1,177 

Bulky Household Waste     

Food/Organic Waste     

Green Waste 745 726 

Recycling Centres     

Bring Sites     

Recycling Collection Schemes 809 686 

Trade Waste     

Recycling Schemes Marketing     

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 2,574 2,589 

      

Street Cleaning 773 788 

      

Central Costs:     

Central Support Costs 160 140 

JWT Staffing Costs 38 39 

Depreciation 91 91 

Finance Leases     

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 289 270 

      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 3,636 3,647 
 

Page 28



Appendix 5 – Forest of Dean District Council Revenue Budget Summary 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership - 
2015/16 Base Budget 

Head of Service:   Steve Read 

Partner: Forest of Dean District Council 
 

  2014/15 2015/16 

Budget Area Revised Original 

  Budget Budget 

  £'000 £'000 

      

      

Waste Collection:     

Household Waste 1,373 1,416 

Bulky Household Waste 6 6 

Food/Organic Waste 307 310 

Green Waste -48 -57 

Recycling Centres   0 

Bring Sites 78 77 

Recycling Collection Schemes 297 366 

Trade Waste   0 

Recycling Schemes Marketing 29 29 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION 2,042 2,147 

      

Street Cleaning 500 518 

      

Central Costs:     

Central Support Costs 195 201 

JWT Staffing Costs 129 134 

Depreciation 397 397 

Finance Leases   0 

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS 721 732 

      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 3,263 3,397 
 
  

Page 29



Appendix 6 – Tewkesbury Borough Council Revenue Budget Summary 

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership - 
2015/16 Base Budget 

Head of Service:   Steve Read 

 
Partner: Tewkesbury Borough Council 

 

    2015/16 

Budget Area   Original 

    Budget 

    £'000 

      

Waste Collection:     

Household Waste   960 

Bulky Household Waste     

Food/Organic Waste     

Green Waste   -87 

Recycling Centres     

Bring Sites     

Recycling Collection Schemes   255 

Trade Waste   32 

Recycling Schemes Marketing   15 

TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION   1,175 

      

Street Cleaning   534 

      

Central Costs:     

Central Support Costs   269 

JWT Staffing Costs   42 

Depreciation   58 

Finance Leases     

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS   369 

      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE   2,078 
 

Note: Tewkesbury Borough Council joined the partnership December 2014. A partnership budget 

 for the full 2014/15 financial year is therefore not available. 

 

Page 30



 

 

 

 
 

Performance Report for 2014/15 

 

Committee  Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

Committee Date  3 July 2015 

Significant 

Decision 
No 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste 

Team (01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

Main Consultees None 

Purpose of Report 
To update members on performance for the financial year 
2014/15. 

Recommendations It is recommended that the Committee notes the report 

Resource 

Implications 
None 

 
1. Background  
 

1.1 The following report sets out the performance for the Gloucestershire Councils during 
2014/15, for example; how much waste was treated, what levels of recycling and 
composting was achieved and how individual Councils performed compared to our 
strategy targets. 
 

2. Performance 
 

2.1. Figure 1 overleaf shows that initially over the period (April 2009 to March 2015) there 
was a reduction in total waste which was very positive and showed the success of 
the service changes that had taken place across the County and the effects of the 
downturn in the economy.  However total waste reached a plateau in 2012/13 and 
has since increased.  This increase in total waste is probably due to the upturn in the 
economy and the maturity of service changes.   The total waste arisings across the 
County over the period (April 2009 to March 2015) has reduced by 6,103 tonnes, 
whilst during the same period the number of households across the County has 
increased by 15,522. During the period (April 2009 to March 2015) the amount of 
residual waste sent to landfill has also reduced by 20,091 tonnes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 31



 

 

Figure 1: The total household waste arisings across the County by waste type 
in kilogrammes per household from April 2009 to March 2015.  

 

 
 
For Cotswold DC the proportion of food waste has been estimated 
 

2.2. Figure 1 also shows that residual waste decreased for 4 years, from April 2009 to 
March 2013 by 28,745 tonnes, but from April 2013 to March 2015 there has been an 
increase of 8,654 tonnes. This more recent increase in residual tonnage is likely to be 
due to an upturn in the economy and maturity of recycling schemes.  
 

2.3. Figure 2 below shows performance at a District level and highlights that total waste 
arisings vary across the County, as they do nationally. There are various factors that 
influence waste arisings: these include the type of collection systems that are in 
place, demographics, housing type, affluence of an area and types of materials 
collected.   
 

Figure 2: 2014/15 Total Household Waste Arisings by Waste Type - Kg per 
household per year  

  

 
For Cotswold DC the proportion of food waste has been estimated 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Garden

Reuse

Recycling

Food

Landfilled

Cheltenham 

BC
Cotswold DC

Forest of 

Dean DC

Gloucester 

City
Stroud DC

Tewkesbury 

BC

Garden 138 272 196 109 3 154

Food 45 58 60 39 0 62

Reuse 6 2 3 7 6 5

Recycling 211 212 143 139 215 220

Landfilled 475 381 434 523 510 407

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

K
il
o
g
ra
m
m
e
s

Page 32



 

 

2.4. Cheltenham is achieving a recycling collection 211kg per household.  However 
Cheltenham has the advantage of operating Swindon Rd which operates as a 
Household Recycling Centre and collects other materials such as metals and TV’s, 
etc.  
 

2.5. Cotswold has the highest total waste arisings on a per household basis yet they have 
the lowest residual waste arisings, which demonstrates that participation in recycling 
and composting schemes is high.  Cotswold is collecting high tonnages of food and 
garden waste but as this is collected together and it is likely that there are higher 
tonnages of garden waste in the Cotswolds because of larger gardens.   
 

2.6. Forest of Dean have the second highest garden waste kg per household figures and 
the second highest food waste kg per household however they have the lowest 
recycling tonnages compared to other authorities.   
 

2.7. Gloucester City operate a weekly service for recycling (all other authorities collect 
fortnightly) and collect both plastic bottles and light card yet has the lowest recycling 
kg per household  figures in the County and in addition their food waste tonnages are 
low.  As a consequence residual waste tonnages at Gloucester City are the highest in 
the County.   
 

2.8. Tewkesbury is operating a co-mingled recycling service and they are achieving the 
highest levels of recycling at 220 kg per household.  However Tewkesbury's residual 
waste tonnage is not the lowest in the County.   
 

2.9. Stroud residual waste tonnage is high because; they collect residual waste weekly 
(all other authorities collect fortnightly), do not operate a separate food waste service 
and they are also collecting garden waste which is going into the residual waste 
stream.    
 

2.10. Figure 3 shows the former national key performance indicators at County and District 
level for 2014/15.  No areas have met their recycling performance target for 2014/15.   
 
Figure 3: Reuse, Recycling and Composting Rates 

 

 
 

 

4
6

% 5
8

%

4
8

%

3
6

%

3
1

%

5
1

% 6
4

%

4
8

%

4
6

% 5
8

%

4
8

%

3
6

%

3
0

%

5
0

% 6
1

%

4
7

%

4
6

%

6
1

%

4
9

%

5
0

%

4
0

%

5
4

%

7
0

%

5
3

%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Cheltenham 

BC

Cotswold DC Forest of 

Dean DC

Gloucester 

City

Stroud DC Tewkesbury 

BC

HRCs County

2013/14 

Actual

2014/15 

Actual

2014/15 

Target

Page 33



 

 

2.11. Cheltenham and Forest of Dean were not far from reaching their targets but Stroud 
and Gloucester City are over 10 percentage points below target. 
 

2.12. The County overall recycling rate reached 47%, which is below the 53% target and a 
lower performance than in 2013/14.  We did not meet the Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy interim target, 50% by 2014/15.   Following a decision by 
Stroud to change their service in 2016 it is anticipated that the County is likely to 
exceed 50% in 2017/18 but there will be real challenges in meeting the 60% target by 
2020. 
 

2.13. No authorities met their residual household waste kg/per household target for 
2014/15.  All authorities have seen an increase in residual household waste kg/ per 
household compared to 2013/14.  
 

Figure 4: Residual Waste sent for disposal to landfill in kg/hh 
 

 
 

 
2.14. Overall the County’s residual household waste reached 532 kg/ per household this 

year compared to 511 kg per household in 2013/14. 
 

3. Future Performance 
 

3.1. There are various projects in the business plan which seeks to improve performance, 
in particular the bin stickering project and the exploration of opportunities to recycle 
more from the HRCs. 
 

3.2. These projects will go some way to addressing the increases in residual waste and 
the flat lining in recycling performance but we will need new approaches to address 
the overall targets set out in the Joint Strategy.   

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

CBC CDC FoDDC GC SDC TBC HRCs County

K
il
o
g
ra
m
m
e
s

2013/14 Actual

2014/15 Actual

2014/15 Target

Page 34



 
 
Joint Waste Committee  
 

CBC; 
 
The JWT recently conducted some soft market testing with recycling re
as part of the recycling materials bulking and marketing project
common view from all companies that the quality of the recyclable materials 
collected in Cheltenham was very clean and
shortly be underway to identify the most suitable re
arrangements start in October.
  
A new process for un-adopted highways 
next update of the environmental service policy
conduct an assessment on un
standard and where there is a clear risk of damage to the collection vehicles, 
instruction can be issued to the householder/s to present their waste and recycling 
receptacles in an alternative position.
  
A large number of waste and recycling service leaflet were distrib
when they canvassed households
improved residents understanding of the services offered
  
CDC; 
 
CDC are reviewing bring bank provision with a view to improving an prioritising 
provision to recycle materials 
Members are also keen to direct traders to other facilities and not use those provided 
for household recyclate.  
 
Some Town/Parish Councils 
removed. JWT is therefore 
travel for the bring site service.
  
Ubico has received a number of 
initiative, which was pledged by the Council earlier this year. 
targeted litter picking and extra litter and dog bins. 
  
FOD; 
  
The FOD project to assess future service and procurement 
and refuse collection service is well established. 
will be shared with the Waste Management Cabinet Support Group in July and a 
presentation to Full Council will follow in September. A report wi
Joint Waste Committee in September se

       

Partner Service Update 

ecently conducted some soft market testing with recycling re
ecycling materials bulking and marketing project. There was a 

companies that the quality of the recyclable materials 
collected in Cheltenham was very clean and marketable. A tender exercise will 

to identify the most suitable re-processors when the new 
October. 

adopted highways has been agreed and will be included in the 
next update of the environmental service policy. (In short the policy enables Ubico to 
conduct an assessment on un-adopted roads and those which are found to be sub

ere there is a clear risk of damage to the collection vehicles, 
instruction can be issued to the householder/s to present their waste and recycling 
receptacles in an alternative position. 

A large number of waste and recycling service leaflet were distributed by m
households before the election and its hoped that this has 

improved residents understanding of the services offered. 

CDC are reviewing bring bank provision with a view to improving an prioritising 
cycle materials not collected at kerbside such as textiles and cartons.

Members are also keen to direct traders to other facilities and not use those provided 

Town/Parish Councils have requested that bring sites in their loc
therefore preparing a consultation with members on the direction of 

travel for the bring site service. 

a number of requests from members as part of the £2k per ward 
initiative, which was pledged by the Council earlier this year. Initiatives include 
targeted litter picking and extra litter and dog bins.  

The FOD project to assess future service and procurement options for the recycling 
and refuse collection service is well established. The results of an options appraisal 
will be shared with the Waste Management Cabinet Support Group in July and a 

ouncil will follow in September. A report will be pr
in September seeking endorsement of recommendations to 

3rd July 2015 

ecently conducted some soft market testing with recycling re-processors 
. There was a 

companies that the quality of the recyclable materials 
A tender exercise will 

when the new 

has been agreed and will be included in the 
In short the policy enables Ubico to 

adopted roads and those which are found to be sub-
ere there is a clear risk of damage to the collection vehicles, 

instruction can be issued to the householder/s to present their waste and recycling 

uted by members 
and its hoped that this has 

CDC are reviewing bring bank provision with a view to improving an prioritising 
not collected at kerbside such as textiles and cartons. 

Members are also keen to direct traders to other facilities and not use those provided 

in their localities are 
preparing a consultation with members on the direction of 

requests from members as part of the £2k per ward 
Initiatives include 

options for the recycling 
options appraisal 

will be shared with the Waste Management Cabinet Support Group in July and a 
ll be presented to the 

of recommendations to 

Agenda Item 12

Page 35



be put to FODDC Cabinet.  It is intended that the November Cabinet will also 
endorse the procurement option that FODDC should pursue, to enable sufficient time 
for the implementation of the preferred option.   
 
There has been a good uptake to the litter prevention street cleaning poster 
competition. The winning designs have been chosen and artwork is being prepared 
to go on the cleansing vehicles. A press release will be issued next week when the 
prizes are awarded.  
 
The fly-tipping reduction project is continuing and Q1 to-date figures show a 
reduction in the number fly- tips and an increase in enforcement action;  
Q1 to-date - 1 statutory notice has been issued, 12 fixed penalty notices, 4 duty-of-
care inspections and 186 stop and searches which led to 1 vehicle seizure and 1 
formal caution. 
 
TBC; 
 
Bin hangers advertising waste /recycling collections dates will shortly be issued to all 
households.  
 
Officers have been dealing with a recurring issue of hypodermic syringes being 
placed in recycling bins within one round. The source area has been identified and 
we are engaging with third sector voluntary organisations to dissuade this practice.   
 
Fly tipping remains elevated in much of the District. The Council is in the process of 
buying CCTV cameras to help identify culprits. 
 
GCC; 
 
Andigestion are now exporting power to the grid. The official launch is on the 
morning of the 16th July and all members and lead officers should have received 
invitations.  If you have not, please let us know ASAP. Adam Henson (Of Cotswold 
Farm Park and BBC Countryfile) will be officially opening the site.  
 
A planning application to improve for site layout at Hempsted is being prepared by 
Kier with input from the JWT. The proposed re-development will involve a Re-use 
shop and extra lanes to help alleviate queuing. 
 
Gloucestershire County Council is working on a contract for collection of food waste 
from schools to commence at the start of the new term in September.  
 
A report on the options for the future delivery of the Household Recycling Centres is 
included elsewhere on this JWC Agenda 
 
Partnership Publicity; 
 
During ‘Recycle Week’ (22-28 June) we promoted textile reuse and recycling. 
 
JWC continues to support Glos City in Preparation for a recycling campaign to take 
place during the Rugby World Cup in September. 

Page 36


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Options for delivering the Household Re-cycling Centres Service
	8 Targeted Marketing Interventions
	9 Management Accounts Provisional Outturn Report 2014/15
	10 Management Accounts Original Base Budget Report 2015/16
	11 Performance Report 2014/15
	12 Partner Service Updates

